BYLAWS

OF

CARRIAGE MANOR HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Revision 3.0 April 2011

ARTICLE I

NAME AND LOCATION

The name of this corporation is Carriage Manor Homeowners Association, Inc., a California nonprofit corporation, and it may be referred to as the "Association" or as "Carriage Manor."

The principal location and office of the Association shall be in the County of Butte, State of California. The meetings of Members and Directors may be held at

such places in Butte County, California, as designated from time to time by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II

PURPOSES AND DEFINITIONS

2.1 <u>Purposes.</u> The Carriage Manor Homeowners Association is organized to provide a legal entity for the Owners of Carriage Manor to hold their properties, as well as the Common Areas of their senior development, and to maintain the philosophy and lifestyle that is unique to Carriage Manor.

These Bylaws are established to govern the internal affairs of the Association. While there is some overlap, the external business of the Association (with lenders, government, etc.) is regulated by a sister document, the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (the "Declaration, or CC&Rs").

Because the CC&Rs are critically important to the title for each Lot in Carriage Manor, they are recorded as a separate document in the official Records of the County Recorder of Butte County, California, as shown in the CC&Rs Article XII, Change Record.

The CC&Rs are also important internally and are therefore hereby incorporated and made a part of these Bylaws.

2.2 <u>Definitions.</u> Bylaws and CC&Rs are specialized corporate and real estate documents that require technical definitions for common words. The terms and definitions that Carriage Manor uses interchangeably in its Declaration, Bylaws, and Rules are listed in Article I of the Declaration.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP

- 3.1 <u>Class.</u> There shall be only one class of membership in this Association.
- 3.2 <u>Qualification</u>. Each Owner of a Lot in Carriage Manor, by virtue of being such an Owner and for so long as such person or entity is such an Owner, shall be a Member of the Association. However, anyone whose interest is only as security for the performance of an obligation shall not be a Member.

The Association membership of each Owner and the right to vote shall be appurtenant to, and may not be separated from, the fee ownership of any Lot in Carriage Manor. Ownership of such Lot shall be the sole qualification for membership.

Every Member of the Association shall be subject to and shall abide by the provisions of the Declaration, the Articles of

Incorporation of the Association, these Bylaws, and any rules and/or regulations that from time to time may be promulgated by the Board of Directors of the Association.

- 3.3 <u>Transfer.</u> The Association membership held by any record Owner of a Lot in Carriage Manor shall not be pledged, transferred, or alienated in any way, except upon the sale or assignment of the Lot and then only to its purchaser or assignee. Any transfer of title to a Lot shall operate automatically to transfer membership to the new Owner.
- Any attempt to make a prohibited transfer is void, and will not be reflected upon the books and records of the Association.

In the event any Owner should fail or refuse to transfer the membership registered in his/her name to the purchaser or assignee, the Association shall have the right to record the transfer upon its books. In the event of dispute as to membership, the ownership of such Lot, as shown in the public records of the County of Butte,

State of California, shall be solely determinant.

3.4 <u>Assessments.</u> The rights of membership are subject to the payment of assessments levied by the Association. The obligation of such assessments is imposed against each Owner of, and becomes a lien upon, the property against which such assessments are made as provided in Articles I, V, VI, and VIII of the Declaration.

Article I of the Declaration defines the assessments.

Article V establishes the covenant for assessments, and sets procedures for uniform application for all Lots.

Article VI deals with assessment delinquencies, and with correction and penalty remedies available to the Association.

3.5 <u>Suspension of Membership.</u> The membership rights of any Member, including benefits to his guests and delegatees, may be suspended by the Board for violation of Association rules.

Suspension for curable violations shall continue only as long as the violation remains uncured, e.g., while assessments owing by the Member remain unpaid and delinquent, and shall then be automatically restored.

Suspension shall not exceed thirty (30) days for each noncurable violation, for instance, of Declaration Section 7.3.

Under no circumstances shall a membership be suspended until there has been reasonable notice and the matter has been duly heard.

ARTICLE IV

VOTING

4.1 <u>Qualifications.</u> Members owning lots in Carriage Manor shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Lot owned.

4.2 <u>Joint-Owner Dispute</u>. The vote for each Unitshall, if at all, be cast as a single vote, and fractional votes shall not be allowed. If joint Owners cannot agree how their vote shall be cast, they shall lose their right to vote until they do agree.

If any Owner cast a vote and it is not challenged by a co-Owner before the vote tally is announced, it will be presumed conclusively for all purposes that that voter was acting with the authority and consent of all other Owners of the same Lot.

- 4.3 <u>Cumulative Voting</u> shall not be allowed.
- 4.4 <u>Violation of Rules.</u> Violation of rules, even by family or invitees, including nonpayment of assessments, may result in suspension of membership, including the right to vote. (See Section 3.5, above).
- 4.5 <u>Additional Voting Requirements</u>. The following additional requirements shall pertain in the situations listed:
- 4.5.a The Board may not, without fifty-on (51) percent of the voting power, impose an Operating Assessment that exceeds the Operating Assessment for the immediately preceding fiscal year by more than twenty (20) percent.
- 4.5.b The Board may not, without fifty-one (51) percent of the voting power of the Association:

- (1) Sell, during any fiscal year, property of the Association having an aggregate fair market value greater five (5) percent of the budgeted gross expenses of the Association for that fiscal year; or,
- (2) Incur expenditures for capital improvements to the Common Area of Carriage Manor that, in the aggregate, exceed five (5) percent of the budgeted gross expenses of the Association for the fiscal year. However, this limitation shall not apply when an assessment arises to defray costs incurred in bringing an Owner into compliance with the Carriage Manor Rules.
- 4.5.c If there is a partial or total destruction of improvements upon the Common Area, and the amount available from insurance proceeds is less than eighty-five (85) percent of the estimated cost of restoration and repair, no repair or rebuilding shall be undertaken, nor shall any assessment cost thereof be levied, without the approval of fifty-one (51) percent of the voting power of the Association.
- 4.5.d The Board may not, without fifty-one (51) percent of the voting power of the Association, enter into a contract with a third party to furnish goods or services for the Common Areas or the Association for a term longer than one (1) year, with the following exceptions:

- (1) A management contract that has been approved by the Federal Housing Administration or Veteran's Administration.
- (2) A contract with a public utility if the charges for material and services are regulated by the Public Utilities Commission and the contract term does not exceed the shortest term for which the supplier will contract at the regulated rate.
- (3) Prepaid casualty or liability insurance policies not to exceed three (3) years duration, provided that the policy permits short-rate cancellation by the insured.

ARTICLE V

PROPERTY RIGHTS AND RIGHTS OF ENJOYMENT OF COMMON AREAS

Each Member shall be entitled to the use and enjoyment of the Common areas and facilities as provided in Article IV of the Declaration. Any Member may delegate these "use and enjoyment" rights to residents of Carriage Manor who are his/her spouse, attendants, or long-term guests, and to members of his/her family, or other

temporary guests that an Owner might invite, for example, for a special event.

Members shall identify their long-term invitees to the Secretary of the Association in writing at the beginning of the invitees' residency, and biennially thereafter on the HOPA survey.

<u>ARTICLE VI</u>

MEETING OF MEMBERS

- 6.1 <u>Annual Meetings.</u> There shall be an Annual Meeting of the Members of the Association on the fourth Thursday of April of each year at 7:00 P.M. At such place within Carriage Manor or within the County of Butte, State of California, or at such other reasonable time (not more than thirty (30) days before or after such date), as may be designated by written notice of the Board given to the Members not less than ten
- (10) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for the meeting, specifying the date, time and place thereof.

Notice of the time and place of such meetings shall be posted at a prominent place or places within the Common Area.

6.2 <u>Special Meetings.</u> A Special Meeting of the Members shall be called by the Board upon: (1) a resolution for such meeting by the Board; or (2) receipt of a written request signed

by at least fifty-one (51) percent of the Members. Notice for a Special Meeting shall meet the same requirements as notice for the Annual Meeting and shall specify the purpose recited in the Board's resolution or in the request from the Members.

6.3 <u>Notice of Meetings.</u> Written notice of each meeting of the Members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or by any person authorized to call

the meeting, by (i) posting notice in the manner prescribed for Annual Meetings; and

(ii) by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least ten (10) days (except in emergency situations), but not more than sixty (60) days before such meeting to each member entitled to vote. Such notice shall specify the place, day, and hour of the meeting and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

6.4 Entry of Notice. Whenever any Member entitled to vote has been absent from any meeting of Members, whether annual or special, an entry in the Minutes to the effect that notice has been duly given shall be conclusive and incontrovertible evidence that due notice of such meeting was given to such Member or Members as required by law and by the Articles of Incorporation, Declaration, and Bylaws of the Association.

- 6.5 <u>Method of Voting.</u> Voting will be by Ballot, and all elections for directors must be by secret written ballot.
- 6.6 Consent of Absentees. The transaction of business at any meeting of Members, either annual or special, however called and noticed, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum be present either in person or by proxy and if either before or after the meeting, each of the Members entitled to vote, not present in person or by proxy, signs a written waiver of notice, or a consent to the holding of such meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents, or approvals shall be filed with the Association records or made a part of the Minutes of the meeting.
- 6.7 Action without Meeting. Any action that, under the provisions of the laws of the State of California, may be taken at a meeting of the Members, may be taken without a meeting, if authorized by a writing signed by all of the Members who would be entitled to vote at a meeting for such purpose and filed with the Secretary of the Association.
- <u>6.8 Conduct of Meetings.</u> Meetings of the Members, and of the Board, shall be conducted by officers in the order of their priority. Note remedy for Members in

Declaration section 2.4.a.

6.8.a. <u>Rules of Order.</u> Meetings of the association shall be conducted according to <u>Robert's Rules of Order.</u>

- 6.8.b. Order of Business. At all meetings of the Members and of the Board, the following order of business shall be observed insofar as it is consistent with the purposes of the meeting.
 - (1) Call the meeting to order.
 - (2) Call the roll; confirm a quorum is present as required.
 - (3) Read notice and proof of call of meeting required for all meetings of the Members, and special meetings of the Board.
 - (4) Read and approve the Minutes of the previous meeting.
 - (5) Reports of officers and committees.
 - (6) Unfinished business.
 - (7) New business.
 - (8) Elect directors (Annual Meeting of Members).
 - (9) Adjourn

ARTICLE VII

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- 7.1 Number. The affairs of this Association shall be managed by a Board of five
- (5) directors, who shall be Members of this Association. There shall be two classes of Directors, one of three (3) directors elected in even years and the second of two (2) directors elected in odd years. The term for each class shall be two years. There shall be no term limits.

7.1 <u>Nomination</u>. Nomination for election to the Board shall be made by a Nominating committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the Annual Meeting or at any special meeting.

The Nominating Committee shall consist of a chair, who shall be a Member of the Board, and two (2) or more Members of the Association.

The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board prior to each Annual Meeting to serve from the close of such Annual Meeting until the close of the next Annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board as it determines in its discretion, but not less than the number of vacancies that are to be filled.

7.2 <u>Election.</u> At each Annual Meeting, the members shall elect directors to succeed those whose terms have expired.

The Members may at any time elect directors to fill any vacancy not filled by the

directors, and may elect additional directors at the meeting at which an amendment of the Bylaws is voted authorizing an increase in the number of directors.

If an Annual Meeting is not held, or no directors are elected, the directors may be elected at any special meeting of Members held for that purpose.

All directors shall hold office until their respective successors are elected.

7.3 <u>Vacancies</u>. Vacancies in the Board may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors, though less than a quorum, and each director so elected shall hold office for the unexpired term of his/her predecessor and until his/her successor is elected.

Any director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by vote of the Members cast in the same manner as such votes may be cast for the election of directors.

A vacancy or vacancies shall be deemed to exist in case of the death, resignation or removal of any director, or if the Members shall increase the authorized number of

directors, but fail to elect the full number of authorized directors.

If a director shall fail to attend three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board without leave of the Board, the office of such director may be declared vacant by a majority of the remaining directors.

If any director tenders his/her resignation to the Board, the Board shall have power to elect a successor to take office at such time as the resignation becomes effective.

7.4 <u>Compensation</u>. No director or officer shall receive compensation for any service rendered to the Association as such, however, any director or officer may be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in the performance of duties.

ARTICLE VIII

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

- 8.1 <u>Place of Meeting.</u> Regular and Special meetings of the Board shall be held at Carriage Manor, or at any place in Butte County, California, which has been designated from time to time by resolution of the Board or by written consent of all Members of the Board. Notice of the time and place of such meetings shall be posted on the Clubhouse door.
- 8.2 Organization Meeting. Immediately following each meeting of Members for the election of directors, the Board shall hold a regular meeting for the purpose of organizing itself, electing officers, and transacting other business. Notice of such meeting is hereby waived.
- 8.3 <u>Regular Meetings</u>. Regular meetings of the Board of directors shall be held the first Monday of each month at 7:00 P.M. at the Carriage Manor Clubhouse, or at

a time and place fixed by the Board.

If business to be transacted does not justify meeting monthly, the Board may elect to meet less frequently, but not less than quarterly.

Should a meeting fall on a legal holiday, it shall be held at the same time on the next Monday that is not a legal holiday.

8.4 <u>Special Meetings.</u> Special meetings of the Board for any purpose may be called at any time by the Chair of the Board or by the President; or, if they are absent or unable or refuse to act, by any Vice President or by any two (2) directors, other than the President.

Written notice of the time, place, and purpose of Special Meetings shall be delivered personally or sent to each director by regular or electronic mail, charges prepaid and addressed as shown on the records of the Association. If no address is

available, then notice shall be sent to the place where meetings of directors are regularly held.

If notice is mailed, it shall be posted in the County of Butte at least three (3) business days prior to the holding of the meeting. Such mailing or delivery shall be deemed proper and personal notice to such director.

- 8.5 <u>Notice of Adjournment</u>. Notice of adjournment of any directors' meeting, either regular or special, need not be given to absent directors if the resuming time and place are fixed at themeeting adjourned.
- 8.6 Entry of Notice. If a director is absent from a special meeting of the Board, a statement in the Minutes, that notice has been duly given, shall be conclusive and incontrovertible evidence that due notice was given to such director as required by law and the Bylaws of the Association.
- 8.7 <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. The transaction of any meeting of the Board, however, called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum be present and if either before or after the meeting, each of the directors not present sign a written waiver of notice or a consent to holding such meeting or approves the meeting's Minutes. All such waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made part of the Minutes of the meeting.
- 8.8 Quorum. A majority of the directors in office shall constitute a quorum, and shall be necessary for the Board to transact business, except to adjourn as hereinafter

provided. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at ameeting duly held at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the

Board.

- 8.9 <u>Rules of Order and Order of Business.</u> Meetings of the Directors shall follow the same rules of conduct as meetings of Members, per Section 6.10 above.
- 8.10 Adjournment. A quorum of the directors may adjourn any directors' meeting to meet again at a stated day and hour. In the absence of a quorum, a majority of the directors present at any Board meeting, either regular or special, may adjourn until the time fixed for the next regular meeting of the Board.
- 8.11 Attendance at Meetings. Regular and special meetings of the Board shall be open to all Members of the Association. However, Members who are not directors shall not participate in any deliberation or discussion unless expressly invited and authorized by vote of a majority of the directors present.

Th Board, with approval of a majority of the directors present, may adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote on personnel or other sensitive matters. The nature of such business to be considered in executive session shall first be announced in open session.

8.12 Action by Written Consent in Lieu of Board Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board may be taken without a meeting if all members of the board individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written consent shall be filed with the Minutes of the

proceedings and shall state that the action was taken by unanimous written consent of the Board without a meeting, and that the bylaws of the Association authorized the directors to so act. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of such directors.

ARTICLE IX

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

9.1 <u>Powers.</u> Subject to limitations imposed by the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, these Bylaws, and the laws of the State of California, as to action

required to be authorized or approved by the Members, and subject to the duties of directors as prescribed by these Bylaws, all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the authority of, and the business and affairs of the Association shall be controlled by the Board with the right to delegate its powers to committees, officers and employees.

Without prejudice to such general powers but subject to the same limitations, it is hereby expressly declared that the directors shall have the following powers, to wit:

- 9.1.a. To select, appoint, and remove all other officers, agents and employees of the Association; to prescribe such powers and duties for them as may not be inconsistent with law, with the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, or the Bylaws; and at the discretion of the directors, to require from them security for faithful service.
- 9.1.b. To adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Areas and facilities, and the personal conduct of the Members and their guests and delegatees thereon, and to establish penalties for infractions thereof.
- 9.1.c. To conduct, manage, and control the affairs and business of the Association.
- 9.1.d. To establish and change the principal office for the transaction of the business of the Association from one location to another within the County of Butte; to designate any place within the County of Butte for the holding of any Members' meeting or meetings; arid to adopt, make and use the corporate seal and to alter the form of such seal from time to time as in their judgement they deem best, provided such seal shall at all times comply with the provisions of law.
- 9.1.e. To borrow money and incur indebtedness for the purposes of the Association, and to cause to be executed and delivered therefore in the association's name promissory notes, bond, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, hypothecation, pledges, or other evidence of debt and securities therefore.

- 9.1.f. To contract for goods and services for the Association and its Common Areas and facilities, subject to the limitations elsewhere provided in these Bylaws, to maintain and otherwise manage the Common Areas and facilities and all other property acquired by the Association, to contract and pay for maintenance, gardening, utilities, materials, supplies and services, relating to the Common Areas and/or facilities, and to employ personnel reasonably necessary for the operation of the Association, including lawyers, accountants, and bookkeepers as appropriate.
- 9.1.g. To maintain or cause to be maintained Parcel F of Carriage Manor (the street Lot).
 - 9.1 .h. To contract and pay for the expenses of the Association.
- 9.i.i. To pay taxes and assessments that are or would become a lien on said Common Areas.
- 9.1.j. Where appropriate, to pay for reconstruction of any portion or portions of the Common Areas damaged or destroyed which are to be rebuilt.
- 9.1.k. To exercise all other powers granted to the Board by the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, or the laws of the State of California.
- 9.1.1. To grant easements where necessary for utilities and sewer facilities over said Common Areas of Carriage Manor.

- 9.1.m. To enter upon any privately owned subdivision interest as necessary, in connection with construction, maintenance or emergency repair for the benefit of said Common Areas or the Members in common.
 - 9.2 <u>Duties.</u> It shall be the duty of the Board:
- 9.2.a. To keep a complete record of all of its acts and corporate affairs and cause an independent examination or audit of the Association's accounts, with copies of such audits provided to each Member, per Section 2.5.k of the Declaration.
- 9.2.b. To supervise all officers, agents, and employees of the Association and to see that their duties are properly performed.
 - 9.2.c. As more fully provided in the Declaration, to:
- (1) Fix the amount of the annual and other assessments against each Lot in a timely manner per Declaration Section 5.3.
- (2) Prepare a roster of the Lots within Carriage Manor and assessments applicable thereto which shall be kept in the office of the Association and shall be open to inspection by any Owner during normal business hours.
- (3) If over due, send notice of the assessment to each Owner subject thereto at least fifteen (15) days after each assessment period.
- 9.2.d. To certify whether an assessment has been paid. See Declaration Section 5.6 for procedure.

- 9.2.e. To contract and pay premiums for fire, casualty, liability, and other insurance, including indemnity and other bonds.
- 9.2.f. To cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded, as may be deemed appropriate.
- 9.2.g. To cause the Common Areas and facilities and all other property of the Association to be maintained and managed.
- 9.2.h. To perform all other duties as may be 'required of the Board by the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, or the laws of the State of California.
- 9.3. <u>Committees.</u> The Board shall appoint an Architectural Committee as provided in the Declaration, and a Nominating Committee, as provided in these Bylaws. The Board, by resolution, may create other committees as deemed appropriate to help carry out its purposes. The number of members of other committees and the persons who shall be members thereof shall be determined by the Board. The Board shall have the discretion to appoint nonmembers of the Association to these other committees.
- 9.4 <u>Carriage Manor Rules</u>. The Board may adopt such Carriage Manor rules as it deems proper for the use of the Association property. A copy of these Rules, as they may form time to time be adopted, amended, or repealed, shall be mailed or otherwise delivered to each Owner and may, but need not,

be recorded. Upon such mailing, delivery or recordation, the Carriage Manor Rules shall have the same force and effect as if they were set forth in and were a part of the Declaration.

9.5 <u>Directors' Liability.</u> The Members of the Board shall not be liable to the Members of the Association for any non-willfultort, mistake of judgment, negligence

or otherwise, except for their own individual willful misconduct or bad faith. The Members of the Association indemnify and hold harmless each Member of the Board against all contractual liability to others arising out of contracts made by the Board on behalf of the Association unless any such contract shall have been made in bad faith. It is intended that the directors shall have no personal liability with respect to any contract made by them on behalf of the Association.

It is also intended that the liability of any Member of the Association arising out of any contract made by the Board, or out of the indemnity in favor of the members of the Board, shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as the number of Lots owned by such Member within Carriage Manor bears to the total number of Lots within Carriage Manor.

Every agreement made on behalf of the Association shall provide that the

persons executing the same are acting only as agents for the Association. Nothing in these Bylaws shall prohibit any member of the Board from entering into contracts with, or otherwise dealing with, the Association, provided that any one or more of the circumstances specified in Section 310 of the California General Corporation Law exists.

Article X

<u>Officers</u>

- 10.1 <u>Election</u>. The officers of the Association, except such officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Sections 10.3 or 10.5 below, shall be chosen annually by the Board. Each shall hold office until he resigns, is removed, or otherwise disqualified to serve, or his successor is elected and qualified.
- 10.2 Removal and Resignation. Any officer may be removed, with or without cause, by a majority of the directors at the time in office at any regular or special meeting of the Board; or, except in case of an officer chosen by the Board, by any officer upon whom such power of removal may be conferred by the Board.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board or to the president or to the secretary of

the Association. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified. Unless otherwise specified, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

- 10.3 <u>Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or other cause, shall be filled by the Board at any regular or special meeting, and the officer so chosen shall hold office until he shall resign, be removed or otherwise disqualified to serve, or his successors shall be elected and qualified.
- 10.4 <u>Chair of the Board.</u> The chair of the Board, if there shall be such an officer, shall, if present, preside at all meetings of the Board, and exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may be from time to time assigned to him by the Board or prescribed by the Bylaws.
- 10.5 <u>President.</u> Subject to such supervisory powers as may be given by the Board to the chair of the Board, if there shall be such an officer, the president shall be the chief executive officer of the Association and shall, subject to the control of the Board, have general supervision, direction and control of the business and officers of the Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Members and in the absence of the chairman of the Board or, if there by none, at all meetings of the Board. He shall be an ex-officio member of all standing

committees of the Board and shall have such other power and duties as may be prescribed by the Board or the Bylaws.

10.6 <u>Vice President</u>. In the absence or disability of the president, the vice president shall perform all duties of the president and, when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the presiden6. The vice president shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed for him by the Board or the Bylaws.

10.7 Secretary. The secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a book of Minutes, at the principal office or such other place as the Board may order, of all meetings of directors and Members, with the time and place of holding, whether regular orspecial, and if special, how authorized, the notice given, the names of those present at directors' meetings, the Members present or represented at Members' meetings, and the proceedings thereof. The secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a membership book containing the name and address of each Member. Termination of any membership shall be recorded the book, together with the date on which the membership ceased.

The secretary shall monitor regulations affecting Carriage Manor's exemptions, keep the Board informed of developments and status, drive the biennial HOPA survey and

analysis, and archive relevant documentation and the HOPA responses and analyses.

The secretary shall give or cause to be given notice of all the meetings of the Members and of the Board required by the Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, and the laws of the State of California.

The secretary shall keep the seal of the Association in safe custody and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board or the Bylaws.

- 10.8 <u>Treasurer</u>. The treasurer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of the Association. The books of account shall at all times be open to inspection by any Director. The Treasurer's Report shall be read at every monthly meeting. He/She shall have such other duties and perform such as may be prescribed by the Board or these Bylaws.
- 10.9 Ombudsman. The ombudsman shall be a member of the Board who serves, as the Association's conciliator and peacekeeper, wherever possible, in any upset involving the Association Members, Board, or committees, the ombudsman shall be responsible for investigating complaints,

proposing and helping to implement appropriate solutions, including revisions of CC&Rs, Bylaws, and Rules, and keeping the Association and Carriage Manor efficient, peaceful, safe, attractive, and comfortable.

ARTICLE XI

MISCELLANEOUS

- 11.1 Audit. (See CC&Rs Section 2.5.k.) The Board shall audit the Association when its annual income exceeds a certain level, or otherwise periodically. The Board may also audit Association directors, officers, and employees as it sees fit.
- 11.2 <u>Financial Statements</u>. The Board shall prepare and distribute financial statements to owners as shown in Declaration Section 2.5.1.
- 11.3 Inspection. Copies of the Association's current Articles, CC&Rs, Bylaws, and Rules, and of its books, contracts and non-sensitive* records (together, the "non- sensitive records") shall be open to any member, in the presence of a Board Member, during regular business hours, but shall not be removed from the clubhouse. Demand for inspection shall be made in writing upon the president, secretary, or assistant secretary of the Association. Such inspection may be made in

person, or by an agent or attorney, and shall include the right to make extracts at the requestor's expense.

These non-sensitive records shall also be produced at any Members' meeting when required by demand of ten (10) percent of the voting power of the membership represented at the meeting.

The Board may establish reasonable rules with respect to (1) notice to be given to the custodian of the records by the Member desiring to make an inspection; (2) hours and days of the week when such an inspection may be made; and (3) payment of the cost of making copies of documents.

*Sensitive records shall include only filles or papers containing identity-theft or other crime-enabling data, shall be separately secured, and shall be open only to directors, to Association officers and employees with a Board-approved need to know, and to officers of the court. Sensitive records shall be minimized and eliminated wherever prudently possible.

Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time, <u>without notice</u>, to inspect all books, records, and papers of every kind and nature, held by the Association.

Each director shall also have the right, for purposes supporting his position as director, to make extracts and

copies of these records. Copying costs shall ber borne by the director.

- 11.4 Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or other orders for payment of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness, issued in the name of or payable to the Association, shall be signed or endorsed by such person or persons in such manner as from time to time shall be determined by resolution of the Board.
- 11.5 <u>Gifts.</u> The Board may accept on behalf of the Association any contribution, gift, bequest, or devise for the general or for any special purposes of the Association.
- 11.6 <u>Contracts, Etc., How Executed.</u> The Board, except as otherwise provided in the Bylaws, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Association,

and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances; and, unless so authorized by the Board, no officer, agent, or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Association by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or to any amount.

ARTICLE XII

AMENDMENT OFBYLAWS

- 12.1 <u>Power of Members.</u> The Bylaws may be altered, amended, or new Bylaws adopted at any regular or special meeting of the Members called for that propose by the affirmative vote of fifty-one (51) percent of the voting power of the membership in the Association.
- 12.2 <u>Power of Directors.</u> Subject to the right of Members, as provided in 12.1 above to adopt, amend, or repeal these Bylaws, Bylaws other than a Bylaw or amendment changing the authorized number of directors, may be adopted, amended, or repealed by the Board at any of its regular or special meetings.
- 12.3 <u>Conflict.</u> In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control; and, in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, the Declaration shall control.